Cl;iff_"‘-?Y .F FAIRVIEW
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

REGULAR"" {EETING AGENDA
QCTOBER 21,2021

1. Roll Call

2. Call to Order

3. Prayer and Pledge

4, Approval of Agenda and Executive Session Ahnouncements

5. Public Hearing(s)

6. Citizen Comments (Limited to the first 5 citizens to sign in and a limit of 3 minutes each)

7. Public Announcements, Awards and Recognitions
A. Fairview Elementary School
B. City Events

8. Staff Comments and Monthly Reports
A. Planning Report
B. Finance Report
C. Public Works
D. City Manager Report, Scott Collins

9. Consent Agenda (Any ltem May be Removed for Individual Consideration)
A. Minutes from Board of Commissioners Meeting September 16, 2021
B. Minutes from the Board of Commissioners Work Session September 18, 2021

10. Old Business {none)

11. New Business

A. Resolution 32-21, A Resolution of the City of Fairview, Tennessee, Designating Items and
Materials as Surplus and Authorizing Their Disposal

B. Resolution 33-21, A Resolution Authorizing the Execution, Terms, Issuance, Sale and
Payment of Not to Exceed $9.950,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021B of the City
of Fairview, Tennessee, and Providing the Details Thereof

C. Resolution 34-21, Initial Bond Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of Not to Exceed Nine
Million Nine Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($9,950,000) General Obligation Bonds of the
City of Fairview, Tennessee

D. CT-0253 Report on Debt Obligation for 2021A Series Debt Restructure

E. Resolution 35-21, A Resolution of the City of Fairview, Tennessee, to Appoint Members to
the Parks Operational Plan Committee

F. Resolution 36-21, A Resolution of the City of Fairview, Tennessee, Authorizing the City
Manager to Purchase Equipment and to Execute all Purchase and Installation-Related




Documents or Contracts Necessary for the Delivery and Installation of the Treehouse
Playground at Bowie Nature Park

G. Resolution 37-21, A Resolution of the City of Fairview, Tennessee, Authorizing the City
Manager to Transfer up to $738,629.73 from the City's Reserve Account to the General
Fund Operating Account for the Purchase, Delivery and Installation of the Treehouse
Playground at Bowie Nature Park and to Return Those Funds to the Reserve Account with
Proceeds from the Series 2021B Bond Issue and from Playground Donations that are
Currently Privately Held

12. Communications from the Mayor and Commissioners

13. Meeting Adjournment









Section 2, Definitions. Without limiting any other definitions of terms and words in
other sections of this Resolution, the following words and terms shall have the meanings
indicated unless otherwise plainly apparent from the context:

“Act” means Title 9, Chapter 21, Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended.

“Authorized Representative of the City” means the then Mayor, the then City Manager,
the then Finance Director, the then City Recorder, or the then Vice Mayor of the City, authorized
by resolution or by law to act on behalf of and bind the City.

“Board of Commissioners” means the Board of Commissioners of the City.

“City Manager” means the duly appointed, qualified and acting City Manager of the City.

“Bond” means individually, or “Bonds™ means collectively, the General Obligation
Bonds, Series 2021B, of the City, authorized by this Resolution of the Board of Commissioners.

“Bond Counsel” means an attorney or firm of attorneys recognized as having experience
in matters relating to the issuance of municipal obligations.

“Book-Entry Form™ or “Book-Entry Systemn” means a form or system, as applicable,
under which physical bond certificates in fully registered form are issued to a Depository, or to
its nominee as Registered Owner, with the certificate of bonds being held by and “immobilized”
in the custody of such Depository, and under which records maintained by persons, other than
the City or the Registration Agent, constitute the written record that identifies, and records the
transfer of, the beneficial “book-entry” interests in those bonds;

“City Attorney” means the duly appointed City Attorney of the City, or his or her
SUCCEessors.

“City Recorder” means the duly appointed, qualified and acting City Recorder of the
City, or his or her successors.

“Closing Date” means the date of delivery and payment of the Bonds.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable
regulations. of the United States Department of the Treasury promulgated thereunder, as in effect
on the date of issuance of the Bonds and as hereafter amended, supplemented, or revised insofar
as such amendments, supplements, or revisions shall pertain to or effect the Bonds.

“Continuing Disclosure Certificate” shall mean that certain Continuing Disclosure
Certificate executed by the City and dated the date of issuance and delivery of any series of the
Bonds, as originally executed and as it may be amended from time to time in accordance with the
terms thereof.

“Debt Service Fund” means the fund maintained by the City and funded with respect to
the any series of Bonds pursuant to Section 21 hereof.

RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 2{34




“Depository” means any securities depository that is a clearing agency under federal laws
operating and maintaining, with its participants or otherwise, a Book-Entry System, including,
but not limited to, DTC.

“DTC” means the Depository Trust Company, a limited purpose company organized
under the laws of the State of New York, and its successors and assigns.

“DTC Participant(s)” means securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and
clearing corporations that have access to the D'TC System.

“Finance Director” means the duly appointed, qualified and acting Finance Director of
the City.

“Governing Body” means the Board of Commissioners of the City.

“Government Obligations” means any bonds or other obligations which as to principal
and interest constitute direct obligations of, or are unconditionally guaranteed by, the United
States of America, including obligations of Federal agencies to the extent unconditionally
guaranteed by the United States of America, which bonds or other obligations shall not be
subject to redemption prior to their maturity other than at the option of the registered owner
thereof.

“Interest Payment Date” means each date on which interest shall be payable on any of the
Bonds, according to their respective terms so long as any of the Bonds shall be Outstanding.

“Mayor” means the duly elected, qualified, and acting Mayor of the City, or his or her
SUCCESSOrs.

“Municipal Advisor” means Cumberland Securities Company, Inc. and its successors and
assigns.

“Qutstanding,” “Bonds Qutstanding,” or “Outstanding Bonds” means, as of a particular
date, all Bonds issued and delivered under this Resolution except: (1) any Bond paid or
redeemed or otherwise canceled by the City at or before such date; (2) any Bond for the payment
of which cash, equal to the principal amount thereof with interest to date of maturity, shall have
theretofore been deposited prior to maturity by the City for the benefit of the Owner thereof; (3)
any Bond in lieu of or in substitution for which another Bond shall have been delivered pursuant
to this Resolution, unless proof satisfactory to the City is presented that any Bond, for which a
Bond in lieu of or in substitution therefor shall have been delivered, is held by a bona fide
purchaser, as that term is defined in Article 8 of the Uniform Commercial Code of the State, as
amended, in which case both the Bond in lieu of or in substitution for which a new Bond has
been delivered and such new Bond so delivered therefor shall be deemed Outstanding; and, (4)
any Bond deemed paid under the provisions of this Resolution, except that any such Bond shall
be considered Outstanding until the maturity thereof only for the purposes of being exchanged,
transferred, or registered.

“Owner”, “Bondholder”, or any similar term, when used with reference to the Bonds,
means any Person who shall be the registered owner of any then Outstanding Bond or Bonds.

RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 3|34



“Person” means an individual, partnership, corporation, trust, or unincorporated
organization, or a governmental entity or agency or political subdivision thereof,

“Principal Payment Date” means such date on which principal shall be payable on any of
the Bonds, according to their respective terms so long as any of the Bonds shall be Outstanding,

“Projects” means (i) the acquisition of land, site preparation, the acquisition, construction
and equipping of public buildings and facilities, including facilities for the City’s police firing
range and public safety training center and renovations to City Hall, (ii) the acquisition of land,
site preparation and construction, rehabilitation or maintenance of roads, streets, bridges,
sidewalks, greenways, parks, including improvements to Northwest Highway at or near Highway
96, improvements to Horn Tavern Road and Chester Road and other miscellaneous road and
drainage projects, (iii) construction, improvements and/or renovations to public buildings and
facilities including the City’s parks and playgrounds, (iv) conversion/payment of the 2020
Capital Outlay Note issued for the foregoing, (v) the payment of legal, fiscal, administrative,
architectural, design and engineering costs incident to all of the foregoing, and (vi)
reimbursement to the appropriate fund of the City for prior expenditures for the foregoing cost, if
applicable.

“Registration Agent” means the registration and paying agent for the Bonds appointed
by the Mayor pursuant to Section 4 hereof or its successor or successors hereafter appointed in
the manner provided in this Resolution.

“Resolution” means this Resolution, as supplemented and amended.
“State” means the State of Tennessee,

“2020 Capital Outlay Note™ means the City’s promissory note dated April 10, 2020 in the
original principal amount of $375,000 issued for the purpose of financing a portion of the
Projects.

“Vice Mayor” means the duly appointed, qualified, and acting Vice Mayor of the City, or
his or her successors.

Section 3. Authorization. There is hereby authorized to be issued general obligation
bonds of the City in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $9,950,000, or such lesser
aggregate amount as may be determined by the Authorized Representatives of the City executing
the Bonds, the proceeds of the sale thereof to be used for the purpose of providing funds:

(a)  to fund the Project Fund and convert the 2020 Capital Outlay Note issued
for the Projects to Bonds as provided in Section 21 hereof; and

(b) to pay costs incident to the issuance and sale of the Bonds.

No Bonds may be issued under the provisions of this Resolution except in accordance
herewith. The 2020 Capital Outlay Note issued for the Projects may not be converted into Bonds
later than two years following the original issuance of such 2020 Capital Outlay Note without the
approval of the State Director of Local Government Finance.

RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 4|34




Section 4. Form of Bonds; Execution. (a) The Bonds are issuable only as fully
registered bonds, without coupons, in denominations of $5,000, or any integral multiple thereof.
All Bonds issued under this Resolution shall be substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit “A”
attached hereto, and by this reference incorporated herein as fully as though copied, with such
appropriate variations, omissions, and insertions as are permitted or required by this Resolution,
the blanks therein to be appropriately completed when the Bonds are prepared, and may have
endorsed thereon such legends or text as may be necessary or appropriate to conform to any
applicable rules and regulations of any governmental authority or any usage or requirement of
law with respect thereto or as otherwise desired by the City. The Bonds shall be numbered
consecutively from one upwards.

(b) The Bonds shall be executed in such manner as may be prescribed by
applicable law in the name, and on behalf, of the City with the manual or facsimile signature of
the Mayor and attested with the manual or facsimile signature of the City Recorder, and with the
official seal, or a facsimile thereof, of the City impressed or imprinted thereon. The Bonds shall
not be valid for any purpose unless authenticated by the manual signature of an officer of the
Registration Agent on the certificate set forth on the Bonds.

(c) In the event any officer whose manual or facsimile signature shall appear
on any Bond shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of such Bond, such manual or such
facsimile signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes as if he or she had
remained in office until such delivery. Any Bond may bear the facsimile signature of, or may be
manually signed by, such individuals who, at the actual time of the execution of such Bond, were
the proper officers of the City to sign such Bond, although on the date of the adoptlon by the City
of this Resolution, such individuals may not have been such officers.

(d)  The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to appoint the Registration
Agent for the Bonds and the Registration Agent, so appointed, is hereby authorized and directed
to maintain Bond registration records with respect to such Bonds, to authenticate and deliver
such Bonds as provided herein, either at original issuance or upon transfer, to effect transfers of
such Bonds, to give all notices of redemption as required herein, to make all payments of
principal and interest with respect to such Bonds as provided herein, to cancel and destroy Bonds
which have been paid at maturity or upon earlier redemption or submitted for exchange or
transfer, to furnish the City at least annually a certificate of destruction with respect to Bonds
canceled and destroyed, and to furnish the City at least annually an audit confirmation of Bonds
paid, Bonds outstanding and payments made with respect to interest on the Bonds. The Mayor is
hereby authorized to execute and the City Recorder is hereby authorized to attest such written
agreement between the City and the Registration Agent as they shall deem necessary and proper
with respect to the obligations, duties and rights of the Registration Agent. The payment of ali
reasonable fees and expenses of the Registration Agent for the discharge of its duties and
obligations hereunder or under any such agreement is hereby authorized and directed.

Section 3. Maturities, Interest Rates, Payment, and Certain Other Provisions of the
Bonds. (a) The Bonds shall be designated “General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021B” or
otherwise with such series designation as the Mayor shall determine is appropriate to delineate
the year in which such Bonds are issued or otherwise as may be useful to distinguish one series
of Bonds from the next. Subject to adjustment as hereinafter provided, the Bonds shall be dated

RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 5|34




as of date of delivery, or such other date as the Mayor of the City shall determine; the Bonds
shall be sold at not less than ninety-nine percent (99%) of par value thereof plus accrued interest,
if any, to the delivery date thereof and may be sold at a premium of not more than 125% of par;
shall bear interest from the date thereof at a rate or rates to be hereafter determined by the City
when the Bonds are sold, but not exceeding five percent (5.00%) per annum, such interest being
payable semi-annually on the first day of June and December of each year, commencing no
earlier than June 1, 2022; and shall mature on the first day of June in the years 2022 through
2051, inclusive, in such amounts each year as set forth in the award certificate, to be determined
at the time of the sale of the Bonds.

In the event that any amount payable on any Bond as interest shall at any time exceed the
rate of interest lawfully chargeable thereon under applicable law, then any such excess shall, to
the extent of such excess, be applied against the principal of such Bond as a prepayment thereof
without penalty, and such excess shall not be considered to be interest. All rates of interest
specified herein shall be computed on the basis of a three hundred sixty (360) day year composed
of twelve (12) months of thirty (30) days each.

The principal of, the premium, if any, and all installments of interest on, any Bond shall
bear interest from and after their respective due dates at a rate of interest equal to the rate of
interest payable on the principal of such Bond.

(b) Interest on the Bonds shall be payable by check or other form of draft of
the Registration Agent, deposited by the Registration Agent in the United States mail, first class
postage prepaid, in sealed envelopes addressed to the Owners of such Bonds, as of the applicable
Interest Payment Date at their respective addresses as shown on the registration books of the City
maintained by the Registration Agent as of the close of business on the fifteenth (15th) calendar
day of the month next preceding the applicable Interest Payment Date (the “Regular Record
Date”). The principal or redemption price, if any, of all Bonds shall be payable upon presentation
and surrender of such Bonds at the designated trust office of the Registration Agent. All
payments of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on, the Bonds shall be made in any
coin or currency of the United States of America which, on the date of payment thereof, shall be
legal tender for the payment of public and private debts.

(c) Any interest on any Bond which is payable but is not punctually paid or
duly provided for on any Interest Payment Date on which interest is due (hereinafter “Defaulted
Interest”) shall forthwith cease to be payable to the Owner on the relevant Regular Record Date;
and, in lieu thereof, such Defaulted Interest shall be paid by check or other form of draft of the
Registration Agent to the persons in whose names the Bonds are registered at the close of
business on a date (the “Special Record Date”) for the payment of such Defaulted Interest, which
shall be fixed in the following manner: the City shall notify the Registration Agent in writing of
the amount of Defaulted Interest proposed to be paid on each Bond and the date of the proposed
payment, and at the same time the City shall deposit with the Registration Agent an amount of
money equal to the aggregate amount proposed to be paid in respect of such Defaulted Interest or
shall make arrangements satisfactory to the Registration Agent for such deposit prior to the date
of the proposed payment, such money when deposited to be held in trust for the benefit of the
persons entitled to such Defaulted Interest as in this Section provided. Thereupon, not less than
ten (10) days after the receipt by the Registration Agent of the notice of the proposed payment,

RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 6|34




the Registration Agent shall fix a Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest
which Date shall be not more than fifteen (15) nor less than ten (10) days prior to the date of the
proposed payment to the Owners. The Registration Agent shall promptly notify the City of such
Special Record Date and, in the name and at the expense of the City, not less than ten (10) days
prior to such Special Record Date, shall cause notice of the proposed payment of such Defaulted
Interest and the Special Record Date therefor to be mailed, first class postage prepaid, to each
Owner at the address thereof as it appears in the registration books of the City maintained by the
Registration Agent as of the date of such notice. Nothing contained in this Section or in the
Bonds shall impair any statutory or other rights in law or in equity of any Owner arising as a
result of the failure of the City to punctually pay or duly provide for the payment of principal of,
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds when due.

Section 6. Redemption.

(a) Subject to the adjustments permitted pursuant to Section 20 hereof, the
Bonds maturing on or before June 1, 2029, shall mature without option of prior redemption.
Bonds maturing June 1, 2030 and thereafter are subject to optional redemption on June 1, 2029,
in whole or in part, or at any time thereafter, at the redemption price of par plus accrued interest
to the redemption date.

If less than all the Bonds of a particular series shall be called for redemption, the
maturities to be redeemed shall be selected by the Governing Body in its discretion. If less than
all of such Bonds within a single maturity shall be called for redemption, the interests within the
maturity to be redeemed shall be selected as follows:

(1) if the Bonds of a particular series are being held under a Book-Entry
System by DTC, or a successor Depository, such Bonds to be redeemed shall be
determined by DTC, or such successor Depository, by lot or such other manner as DTC,
or such successor Depository, shall determine; or

(ii)  if Bonds of a particular series are not being held under a Book-Entry
System by DTC, or a successor Depository, such Bonds within the maturity to be
redeemed shall be selected by the Registration Agent by lot or such other random manner
as the Registration Agent in its discretion shall determine.

(b)  Pursuant to Section 20 hereof, the Mayor is authorized to sell the Bonds,
or any maturities thereof, as term bonds (“Term Bonds”) with mandatory redemption
requirements as determined by the Mayor. In the event any or all of such Bonds are sold as Term
Bonds, the City shall redeem Term Bonds on redemption dates corresponding to the maturity
dates designated by the Mayor, in aggregate principal amounts equal to the maturity amounts
established pursuant to Section 20 hereof for each redemption date, as such maturity amounts
may be adjusted pursuant to Section 20 hereof, at a price of par plus accrued interest thereon to
the date of redemption. The Term Bonds to be redeemed within a single maturity shall be
selected in the manner described in subsection (a) above.

At its option, to be exercised on or before the forty-fifth (45th) day next preceding any
such mandatory redemption date, the City may (i) deliver to the Registration Agent for

RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 7|34




cancellation Term Bonds to be redeemed, in any aggregate principal amount desired, and/or (ii)
receive a credit in respect of its redemption obligation under this mandatory redemption
provision for any Term Bonds of the maturity to be redeemed which prior to said date have been
purchased or redeemed (otherwise than through the operation of this mandatory sinking fund
redemption provision) and canceled by the Registration Agent and not theretofore applied as a
credit against any redemption obligation under this mandatory sinking fund provision. Each
Term Bond of the particular series so delivered or previously purchased or redeemed shall be
credited by the Registration Agent at 100% of the principal amount thereof on the obligation of
the City on such payment date and any excess shall be credited on future redemption obligations
in chronological order, and the principal amount of Term Bonds of the particular series to be
redeemed by operation of this mandatory sinking fund provision shall be accordingly reduced.
The City shall on or before the forty-fifth (45th) day next preceding each payment date furnish
the Registration Agent with its certificate indicating whether or not and to what extent the
provisions of clauses (i) and (ii) of this subsection are to be availed of with respect to such
payment and confirm that funds for the balance of the next succeeding prescribed payment will
be paid on or before the next succeeding payment date.

(¢) Notice of call for redemption, whether optional or mandatory, shall be
given by the Registration Agent on behalf of the City not less than twenty (20) nor more than
sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption by sending an appropriate notice to the
registered owners of the Bonds to be redeemed by first-class mail, postage prepaid, at the
addresses shown on the Bond registration records of the Registration Agent as of the date of the
notice; but neither failure to mail such notice nor any defect in any such notice so mailed shall
affect the sufficiency of the proceedings for redemption of any of the Bonds for which proper
notice was given. The notice of any optional redemption may state that it is conditioned upon the
deposit of moneys in an amount equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption with the
Registration Agent for the series in question no later than the redemption date (“Conditional
Redemption™). As long as DTC, or a successor Depository, is the registered owner of the Bonds,
all redemption notices shall be mailed by the Registration Agent to DTC, or such successor
Depository, as the registered owner of the Bonds, as and when above provided, and neither the
City nor the Registration Agent shall be responsible for mailing notices of redemption to DTC
Participants or Beneficial Owners. Failure of DTC, or any successor Depository, to provide
notice to any DTC Participant or Beneficial Owner will not affect the validity of such
redemption. The Registration Agent shall mail said notices as and when directed by the City
pursuant to written instructions from an authorized representative of the City (other than for a
mandatory sinking fund redemption, notices of which shall be given on the dates provided
herein) given at least forty-five (45) days prior to the redemption date (unless a shorter notice
period shall be satisfactory to the Registration Agent). From and after the redemption date, all
Bonds called for redemption shall cease to bear interest if funds are available at the office of the
Registration Agent for the payment thereof and if notice has been duly provided as set forth
herein. In the case of a Conditional Redemption, the failure of the City to make funds available
in part or in whole on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an event of default, and
the Registration Agent shall give immediate notice to the Depository, if applicable, or the
affected Bondholders that the redemption did not occur and that the Bonds called for redemption
and not so paid remain outstanding.

RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 834




Section 7. Negotiability of Bonds. All Bonds issued under this Resolution shall be
negotiable, subject to the provisions for registration and transfer contained in this Resolution and
in the Bonds.

Section 8. Registration Books and Bond Registrar. (a) The City authorizes the
Registration Agent for the Bonds so long as any of such Bonds shall remain Outstanding, to
maintain at the designated trust office of the Registration Agent, books for the registration and
transfer of such Bonds on behalf of the City. The Registration Agent shall register in such books
and permit to be transferred thereon, under such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, any
such Bond entitled to registration or transfer and to authenticate and deliver such Bonds either at
original issuance, upon transfer, or as otherwise directed by the City. The Registration Agent is
authorized to make all payments of principal, interest, and redemption premium, if any, with
respect to such Bonds.

(b) The Registration Agent shall signify its acceptance of the duties and
obligations imposed upon it by this Resolution by a written instrument of acceptance executed
and delivered to the City Recorder prior to or on the Closing Date for the Bonds.

Section 9. Exchange of Bonds. Upon surrender of the Bonds at its principal
corporate trust office or other designated office, together with an assignment of such Bonds duly
executed by the Owner thereof, or his, her, or its attorney or legal representative, such Bonds
may be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount of Bonds of the same maturity, of
any denomination or denominations authorized by this Resolution, and bearing interest at the
same rate as the Bonds surrendered for exchange.

Section 10.  Transfer of Bonds. (a) Each Bond shall be transferable only on the
registration books maintained by the Registration Agent at the designated office of the
Registration Agent, upon the surrender for cancellation thereof at such office of the Registration
Agent, together with an assignment of such Bond duly executed by the Owner thereof or his, her,
or its attorney or legal representative, and upon payment of the charges hereinafter provided, and
subject to such other limitations and conditions as may be provided therein or herein. Upon the
cancellation of any such Bond, the Registration Agent shall, in exchange for the surrendered
Bond or Bonds, deliver in the name of the transferee or transferees a new Bond or Bonds of
authorized denominations, of the same aggregate principal amount and maturity and rate of
interest as such surrendered Bond or Bonds, and the transferee or transferees shall take such new
Bond or Bonds subject to all of the conditions herein contained.

(b)  The City and the Registration Agent may deem and treat the Person in
whose name any Bond shall be registered upon the registration books maintained by the
Registration Agent as the absolute owner thereof, whether such Bond shall be overdue or not, for
the purpose of receiving payment of the principal of and the interest on, such Bond and for all
other purposes. All such payments so made to the registered Owner thereof shall be valid and
effectual to satisfy and discharge the hability of the City or the Registration Agent upon such
Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. Neither the City nor the Registration Agent shall
be affected by any notice to the contrary.

RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 9|34




Section 11.  Regulations with Respect to Exchanges and Transfers. (a) In all cases in
which the privilege of exchanging or transferring Bonds is exercised, the City shall execute, and

the Registration Agent shall deliver, Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution.
For every exchange or transfer of the Bonds, whether temporary or definitive, the City and the
Registration Agent may make a charge, unless otherwise herein to the contrary expressly
provided, sufficient to pay for any tax, fee, or other governmental charge required to be paid with
respect to such exchange or transfer.

(b) Neither the City nor the Registration Agent shall be obligated to exchange
or transfer any Bond during the fifteen (15) calendar days next preceding an Interest Payment
Date.

Section 12,  Book Entry Provision.

(a) Except as otherwise provided in this resolution, the Bonds shall be
registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, which will act as securities
depository for the Bonds. References in this Section to a Bond or the Bonds shall be construed to
mean the Bond or the Bonds that are held under the Book-Entry System. One Bond for each
maturity shall be issued to DTC and immobilized in its custody. A Book-Entry System shall be
employed, evidencing ownership of the Bonds in authorized denominations, with transfers of
beneficial ownership effected on the records of DTC and the DTC Participants pursuant to rules
and procedures established by DTC.

Each DTC Participant shall be credited in the records of DTC with the amount of such
DTC Participant’s interest in the Bonds. Beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds may be
purchased by or through DTC Participants. The holders of these beneficial ownership interests
are hereinafter referred to as the “Beneficial Owners.” The Beneficial Owners shall not receive
the Bonds representing their beneficial ownership interests. The ownership interests of each
Beneficial Owner shall be recorded through the records of the DTC Participant from which such
Beneficial Owner purchased its Bonds. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds shall be
accomplished by book entries made by DTC and, in turn, by DTC Participants acting on behalf
of Beneficial Owners. SO LONG AS CEDE & CO., AS NOMINEE FOR DTC, IS THE
REGISTERED OWNER OF THE BONDS, THE REGISTRATION AGENT SHALL TREAT
CEDE & CO., AS THE ONLY HOLDER OF THE BONDS FOR ALL PURPOSES UNDER
THIS RESOLUTION, INCLUDING RECEIPT OF ALL PRINCIPAL OF, PREMIUM, IF
ANY, AND INTEREST ON THE BONDS, RECEIPT OF NOTICES, VOTING AND
REQUESTING OR DIRECTING THE REGISTRATION AGENT TO TAKE OR NOT TO
TAKE, OR CONSENTING TO, CERTAIN ACTIONS UNDER THIS RESOLUTION.

Payments of principal, interest, and redemption premium, if any, with respect to the
Bonds, so long as DTC is the only owner of the Bonds, shall be paid by the Registration Agent
directly to DTC or its nominee, Cede & Co. as provided in the Letter of Representation relating
to the Bonds from the City (the “Letter of Representation™). DTC shall remit such payments to
DTC Participants, and such payments thereafter shall be paid by DTC Participants to the
Beneficial Owners. The City and the Registration Agent shall not be responsible or liable for
payment by DTC or DTC Participants, for sending transaction statements or for maintaining,
supervising or reviewing records maintained by DTC or DTC Participants.

RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 1034




In the event that (1) DTC determines not to continue to act as securities depository for the
Bonds, (2) the City determines that the continuation of the Book-Entry System of evidence and
transfer of ownership of the Bonds would adversely affect their interests or the interests of the
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds, or (3) the purchaser(s) certifies that it intends to hold the Bonds
for its own account and has no present intent to reoffer the Bonds, then the City shall discontinue
the Book-Entry System with DTC or, upon request of such original purchaser, deliver the Bonds
to the original purchaser in the form of fully registered Bonds, as the case may be. If the City
fails to identify another qualified securities depository to replace DTC, the City shall cause the
Registration Agent to authenticate and deliver replacement Bonds in the form of fully registered
Bonds to each Beneficial Owner.

THE CITY, THE MUNICIPAL ADVISOR AND THE REGISTRATION AGENT
SHALL NOT HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATIONS TO ANY DTC
PARTICIPANT OR ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER WITH RESPECT TO (i) THE BONDS; (ii)
THE ACCURACY OF ANY RECORDS MAINTAINED BY DTC OR ANY DTC
PARTICIPANT; (iii) THE PAYMENT BY DTC OR ANY DTC PARTICIPANT OF ANY
AMOUNT DUE TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER IN RESPECT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF
AND INTEREST ON THE BONDS; (iv) THE DELIVERY OR TIMELINESS OF DELIVERY
BY DTC OR ANY DTC PARTICIPANT OF ANY NOTICE DUE TO ANY BENEFICIAL
OWNER THAT IS REQUIRED OR PERMITTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THIS
RESOLUTION TO BE GIVEN TO BENEFICIAL OWNERS, (v) THE SELECTION OF
BENEFICIAL OWNERS TO RECEIVE PAYMENTS IN THE EVENT OF ANY PARTIAL
REDEMPTION OF THE BONDS; OR (vi) ANY CONSENT GIVEN OR OTHER ACTION
TAKEN BY DTC, OR ITS NOMINEE, CEDE & CO., AS OWNER.

(b) The Registration Agent is hereby authorized to take such action as may be
necessary from time to time to qualify and maintain the Bonds for deposit with DTC, including
but not limited to, wire transfers of interest and principal payments with respect to the Bonds,
utilization of electronic book entry data received from DTC in place of actual delivery of Bonds
and provision of notices with respect to Bonds registered by DTC (or any of its designees
identified to the Registration Agent) by overnight delivery, courier service, telegram, telecopy or
other similar means of communication. No such arrangements with DTC may adversely affect
the interest of any of the owners of the Bonds, provided, however, that the Registration Agent
shall not be liable with respect to any such arrangements it may make pursuant to this section.

Section 13.  Mutilated, Lost, Stolen, or Destroyed Bonds. (a) In the event any Bond is
mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed, the City may execute, and upon the request of an Authorized
Representative of the City the Registration Agent shall deliver, a new Bond of like maturity,
interest rate, and principal amount, and bearing the same number (but with appropriate
designation indicating that such new Bond is a replacement Bond) as the mutilated, destroyed,
lost, or stolen Bond, in exchange for the mutilated Bond or in substitution for the Bond so
destroyed, lost, or stolen. In every case of exchange or substitution, the Bondholder shall furnish
to the City and the Registration Agent: (1) such security or indemnity as may be required by an
Authorized Representative of the City to save the City and the Registration Agent harmless from
all risks, however remote; and, (2) evidence to their satisfaction of the mutilation, destruction,
loss, or theft of the subject Bond and the ownership thereof. Upon the issuance of any Bond upon
such exchange or substitution, an Authorized Representative of the City and the Registration

RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 11|34



Agent may require the Owner thereof to pay a sum sufficient to defray any tax or other
governmental charge that may be imposed in relation thereto and any other expenses, including
printing costs and counsel fees, of the City and the Registration Agent. In the event any Bond
which has matured or is about to mature shall become mutilated or be destroyed, lost, or stolen,
an Authorized Representative of the City may, instead of issuing a Bond in exchange or
substitution therefor, pay or authorize the payment of the same (without surrender thereof except
in the case of a mutilated Bond) if the Owner thereof shall pay all costs and expenses, including
attorney’s fees, incurred by the City and the Registration Agent in connection therewith, as well
as a sum sufficient to defray any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in
relation thereto and shall furnish to the City and the Registration Agent such security or
indemnity as an Authorized Representative of the City and the Registration Agent may require to
save the City and the Registration Agent harmless and evidence to the satisfaction of an
Authorized Representative of the City and the Registration Agent, of the mutilation, destruction,
loss, or theft of such Bond and of the ownership thereof.

(b)  Every Bond issued pursuant to the provisions of this Section shall
constitute an additional contractual obligation of the City (whether or not the destroyed, lost, or
stolen Bond shall be found at any time to be enforceable) and shall be entitled to all the benefits
of this Resolution equally and proportionately with any and all other Bonds duly issued under
such Resolution.

(c) All Bonds shall be held and owned upon the express condition that the
provisions of this Section are exclusive, with respect to the replacement or payment of mutilated,
destroyed, lost, or stolen Bonds, and, to the maximum extent legally permissible, shall preclude
all other rights or remedies, notwithstanding any law or statute now existing or hereafter enacted
to the contrary.

Section 14.  Authentication. Only such of the Bonds as shall have endorsed thereon a
certificate of authentication, substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit “A” hereto duly
executed by the Registration Agent, shall be entitled to the rights, benefits and security of this
Resolution. No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose unless, and until, such
certificate of authentication shall have been duly executed by the Registration Agent. Such
executed certificate of authentication by the Registration Agent upon any such Bond shall be
conclusive evidence that such Bond has been duly authenticated and delivered under this
Resolution as of the date of authentication. The certificate of authentication of the Registration
Agent on any Bond shall be deemed to have been duly executed if manually signed by an
authorized officer of the Registration Agent, but it shall not be necessary that the same officer
sign and date the certificate of authentication on all Bonds that may be issued hereunder.

Section 15.  Permitted Acts and Functions of Registration Agent. The Registration
Agent may become the Owner of any Bonds, with the same rights as it would have if it were not
a Registration Agent.

Section 16.  Resignation or Removal of the Registration Agent and Appointment of
Successors. (a) The Registration Agent may at any time resign and be discharged of the duties
and obligations created by this Resolution by giving at least sixty (60) calendar days” written
notice to the City Recorder; provided, however, until a successor Registration Agent is appointed

RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 12|34




the Registration Agent shall continue to carry out the duties and obligations of the Registration
Agent created by this Resolution. The Registration Agent may be removed at any time by
resolution of the City filed with such Registration Agent. Any successor Registration Agent shall
be appointed by resolution of the City, shall be a trust company or a bank having the powers of a
trust company, having, at the time of such appointment, a combined capital, surplus, and
undivided profits aggregating at least Thirty Million Dollars ($30,000,000), and be willing and
able to accept the office of Registration Agent on reasonable and customary terms, and shall be
authorized by law to perform all the duties imposed upon it by this Resolution.

(b) In the event of the resignation or removal of the Registration Agent, such
Registration Agent shall pay over, assign and deliver any monies held by it as Registration
Agent, and all registration books and records held by it to its successor, or if there be no
successor then appointed, to the City Recorder until such successor be appointed.

Section 17.  Merger or Consolidation of Registration Agent. Any corporation or
association into which the Registration Agent may be converted or merged, or with which it may

be consolidated, or to which it may sell or transfer its trust business and assets as a whole, or
substantially as a whole, or any corporation or association resulting from any such conversion,
sale, merger, consolidation, or transfer to which it is a party shall be and become successor
Registration Agent hereunder and shall be vested with all the trusts, powers, discretion,
immunities, privileges, and other matters as was its predecessor, without the execution or filing
of any instrument or any further act, deed, or conveyance on the part of any of the parties hereto,
anything herein contained to the contrary notwithstanding.

Section 18.  Source _of Payment and Security. The Bonds, including the principal
thereof, the premium, if any, and the interest thereon, shall be payable from ad valorem taxes to
be levied for such purpose on all taxable property within the corporate limits of the City without
limitation as to time, rate, or amount. Said Bonds shall be a direct general obligation of the City,
for which the punctual payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds
the full faith and credit of the City is hereby irrevocably pledged.

Section 19. Levy of Taxes. For the purpose of providing for the payment of the
principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, there shall be levied in each year in
which such Bonds shall be outstanding a direct tax on all taxable property in the City, fully
sufticient, to pay all such principal and interest falling due prior to the time of collection of the
next succeeding tax levy. Said tax shall be assessed, collected, and paid at the time, and in the
same manner, as the other taxes of said City, shall be in addition to all other taxes, and shall be
without limitation as to time, rate, or amount, The Board of Commissioners of the City is
required by law and shall and does hereby pledge to levy such tax. Principal, premium, if any,
and interest, or any of the foregoing, falling due at any time when there shall be insufficient
funds on hand from such tax levy for the payment thereof shall be paid from the general fund or
other available funds of the City, but reimbursement therefor may be made from the taxes herein
provided when the same shall have been collected. Such taxes levied and collected therefor shall
be deposited in a special fund with other funds available for such purpose, and vused solely for the
payment of principal and interest on the Bonds as the same shall become due. Such tax may be
reduced or eliminated to the extent that other legally available funds are used to pay principal
and interest on the Bonds.

RESOLUTION 33-21] CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 13|34




Section 20.  Sale of Bonds.

(a) Under and pursuant to the provisions of the Act and this Resolution, the
execution, issuance, sale, and delivery of the Bonds in one or more emissions at a public sale, in
consideration of payment therefor, at a price not less than 99% (which includes any original issue
discount) of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds, in accordance with the provisions of
the Resolution is approved. The Board of Commissioners directs the Mayor or its Municipal
Advisor to cause any and all notices of the proposed public sale of the Bonds to be given in
accordance with the new issue price regulations and other applicable law,

(b)  The Mayor is authorized, in consultation with Cumberland Securities
Company, Inc., the City’s Municipal Advisor, and in consultation with the City’s City Manager
and Finance Director, to sell the Bonds by physical delivery of bids or by electronic bidding
means of an Internet bidding service as shall be determined by the Mayor and to :

(N to establish the dated date of the Bonds, or any emission thereof;

(2) to change the first interest payment due on the Bonds or any emission
thereof to a date other than June 1, 2022;

(3)  to facilitate the sale of the Bonds in a manner that is in the best interest of
the City, to modify, reduce or eliminate the Projects being financed with
the proceeds from the sale of the Bonds, and to adjust the total amount
authorized to be issued herein so long as the total principal amount of the
Bonds does not exceed $9,950,000;

(4) to adjust the principal and interest payment dates and maturity amounts of
the Bonds or any emission thereof, provided that (A) the total principal
amount of all emissions of the Bonds does not exceed the total amount of
Bonds authorized herein, (B) the first maturity date of the Bonds is a date
not earlier than June 1, 2022, and (C) with respect to the balance of the
proceeds, if any, the final maturity date shall not be later than June 1,
2051,

(5)  to change the City’s optional redemption provisions of the Bonds,
provided that the premium amount to be paid on the Bonds or any
emission thereof does not exceed two percent (2%) of the principal
amount thereof;

(6) to sell the Bonds, or any maturities thereof as Term Bonds with mandatory
sinking fund requirements as determined by the Mayor, as she shall deem
most advantageous to the City; and

(7)  to cause all or a portion of the Bonds to be insured by a bond insurance
policy issued by a nationally recognized bond insurance company to
achieve the purposes set forth herein and to serve the best interests of the
City and to enter into agreements with such insurance company with

RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 14|34




respect to any emission of Bonds to the extent not inconsistent with this
Resolution.

(c) The Mayor is authorized to sell the Bonds, or any emission thereof,
simultaneously with any other bonds authorized by resolution or resolutions of the Governing
Body. The Mayor is further authorized to sell the Bonds, as a single issue of bonds with any
other bonds with substantially similar terms authorized by resolution or resolutions of the
Governing Body, in one or more emissions or series as she shall deem to be advantageous to the
City and in doing so, the Mayor is authorized to change the designation of the Bonds to a
designation other than “General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021B” provided, however, that the
total aggregate principal amount of combined bonds to be sold does not exceed the total
aggregate principal amount of Bonds authorized by this Resolution or bonds authorized by any
other resolution or resolutions adopted by the Governing Body.

(d) The Mayor is authorized to award the Bonds, or any emission thereof, to
the bidder whose bid results in the lowest true interest cost to the City. The award of the Bonds
by the Mayor to the lowest bidder shall be binding on the City, and no further action of the
Governing Body with respect thereto shall be required.

(e) The Mayor, the City Manager or the Finance Director, or any of them, is
hereby authorized to cause to be prepared and distributed a Preliminary Official Statement in
connection with the sale of the Bonds, in such form and containing such information as the
Mayor, the City Manager or the Finance Director, or any of them, shall determine appropriate
and consistent with the terms of this Resolution and to deem the Preliminary Official Statement
final for the purpose of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15¢(2)(12).

() (D The Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes an Official
Statement of the City substantially in the form of the Preliminary Official Statement relating to
the Bonds, with such modifications thereto as the Mayor, the City Manager or Finance Director
or any of them shall approve. After bids have been received and the Bonds have been awarded,
the Mayor, the City Manager or the Finance Director, or any of them, shall make such
completions, omissions, insertions and changes in the Preliminary Official Statement not
inconsistent with this Resolution as are necessary or desirable to complete it as a final Official
Statement. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute copies of said Official
Statement and to deliver a reasonable number of copies of said Official Statement to the
successful bidder, to each potential investor requesting a copy of the Official Statement and to
each person to whom such bidder and members of his bidding group initially sell any emission of
Bonds, which execution and delivery shall be conclusive evidence of the approval of any such
modifications; and the Board of Commissioners hereby consents to the lawful use of said
Official Statement and the information contained therein in connection with the sale of the
Bonds.

(2) The Authorized Representatives of the City are hereby authorized,
empowered, and directed, from and after the execution and delivery of the certificate of award to
do all acts and things, and execute all documents, as may be necessary or convenient to carry out,
and comply with, the provisions of said certificate of award, as executed and delivered.

RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 15|34




(3)  No Bonds shall be issued hereunder until twenty (20) days have
elapsed following publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of the Initial
Resolution, during which no legally sufficient petition protesting the issuance of the Bonds has
been filed with the City Recorder.

(2) The Mayor is hereby authorized to engage Waller Lansden Dortch &
Davis, LLP as Bond Counsel for the Bonds and to enter into an engagement letter with respect to
the legal services to be provided by such firm in substantially the form of the letter agreement
attached hereto as Exhibit B. Any modification or amendment thereto shall be as determined by
the Mayor and his execution thereof shall constitute conclusive proof of his approval and no
further act or deed of the Governing Body shall be required.

Section 21.  Disposition of Bond Proceeds and Other Funds. The proceeds of the sale
of the Bonds and certain other funds shall be used and applied as follows:

(a) All accrued interest, if any, shall be deposited to the Debt Service Fund, if
any such fund is maintained by the City, and used to pay interest on the Bonds on the first
Interest Payment Date following delivery of the Bonds.

b) The balance of the proceeds from the sale of each series of Bonds shall be
deposited to a segregated fund to be known as the “Project Fund”. Moneys in each Project Fund
shall be used solely to pay cost of the Projects, reimburse the City for amounts previously spent
to pay said costs, convert the 2020 Capital Outlay Note issued for the Project into Bonds and pay
cost of issuance of the Bonds, including legal, accounting and fiscal expenses, printing,
advertising and similar expenses, administrative and clerical costs, applicable Registration Agent
fees and other necessary miscellaneous expenses incurred in the issuance of the Bonds and
construction and acquisition of the Projects. Money in such Project Fund shall be secured in the
manner prescribed by applicable statutes relative to the securing of public or trust funds, if any,
or, in the absence of such a statute, by a pledge of readily marketable securities having at all
times a market value of not less than the amount in the Project Fund. Moneys in the Project
Fund shall be invested as directed by an authorized representative of the City in such investments
as shall be permitted by Tennessee law. All income derived from such investments shall be
retained in the Project Fund. Any funds remaining in the Project Fund after completion of the
Projects and payment of authorized expenses shall be used to pay interest on the Bonds and
redeem such Bonds on their earliest redemption date.

Section 22.  Bank Qualification. The Governing Body hereby designates the Bonds as
“qualified tax-exempt obligations” within the meaning of and pursuant to Section 265 of the
Code to the extent such Bonds may be designated as such.

Scction 23.  Non-Arbitrage Certification. The City certifies and covenants with the
Owners of the Bonds that so long as the principal of any Bond remains unpaid, monies on
deposit in any fund or account in connection with the Bonds, whether or not from any other
source, will not be used in a manner which will cause the Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds™ within
the meaning of Section 148 of the Code. The City reserves the right, however, to make any
investment of such monies permitted by Tennessee law and this Resolution if, when and to the
extent that said Section 148 or regulations promulgated thereunder shall be repealed or relaxed or

RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 16| 34



shall be held void by final decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, but only if any
investment made by virtue of such repeal, relaxation, or decision would not, in the opinion of
Bond Counsel, result in making the interest on the Bonds subject to federal income taxation.

The City covenants that it shall comply with Section 148(f) of the Code, unless legally
exempted therefrom, and the City represents that in the event it shall be required by Section
148(f) of the Code to pay “Rebatable Arbitrage,” as such term is defined and used in the Code,
pursuant to the Code, to the United States Government, it will make such payments as and when
required by said Section 148(f) and will take such other actions as shall be necessary or
permitted to prevent the interest on the Bonds from becoming subject to inclusion in the gross
income of the Owners of the Bonds for purposes of federal income taxation.

Section 24.  Continuing Disclosure. The City hereby covenants and agrees that it will
comply with and carry out, all of the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate.
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution, failure of the City to comply with the
Continuing Disclosure Certificate shall not be considered an event of default; however, any
Bondholder or Beneficial Owner may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate,
including seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the City to comply
with its obligations under this Section. For purposes of this Section, “Beneficial Owner” means
any person which (a) has the power, directly or indirectly, to vote or consent with respect to, or
to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds (including persons holding Bonds through nominees,
depositories or other intermediaries), or (b) is treated as the owner of any Bonds for federal
income tax purposes.

Section 25.  Defeasance of Bonds. (a) If the City shall pay or cause to be paid to the
Owners of all Outstanding Bonds the principal thereof and the interest thereon, at the times and
in the manner stipulated therein and in this Resolution, then the pledge of the full faith and credit
of the City and the unlimited taxing power of the City, or any and all other rights granted or
created under this Resolution for the benefit of the Owner of the Bonds so paid, shall be released,
discharged, and satisfied. In such event, the Registration Agent shall pay or deliver to the City
Recorder all monies or securities held by the Registration Agent pursuant to this Resolution
which are not required for the payment or redemption of such Bonds not theretofore surrendered
for such payment or redemption. If the City shall not pay or cause to be paid, at the same time,
all Bonds then Outstanding, then the Registration Agent shall not, except as may herein be
otherwise expressly provided, return those monies and securities which are held under this
Resolution for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds then Outstanding not so paid or caused to
be paid.

(b) Any Outstanding Bond shall, prior to the maturity or redemption date
thereof, be deemed to have been paid within the meaning of, and with the effect expressed in,
subsection (a) of this Section if: (1) there shall have been set aside by the City for the benefit of
the Owner of such Qutstanding Bond sufficient monies or Government Obligations, or a
combination of both monies and Government Obligations, determined in accordance with
subsection (c) of this Section, to pay the principal of, or redemption price of, the Bond when due,
and all interest accruing on such Bond until the payment of such principal or redemption price;
(2) provision shall have been made for the payment of all fees and expenses of the Registration
Agent with respect to the Bonds; and, (3) all other payments required to be made under this

RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 17|34



Resolution with respect to the Bonds shall have been made or satisfactory provision made
therefor,

(c) For purposes of subsection (b) of this Section, sufficient monies shall be
deemed to have been set aside by the City to pay the principal of an Outstanding Bond when due,
or to redeem such Outstanding Bond at the earliest possible redemption date thereof, and to pay,
when due, all interest accruing on such Bond until the payment of such principal or redemption
price, as applicable, only if there shall be on deposit with the City or its designee, for the benefit
of the Owner of such Bond, and available for such purposes, an amount of cash and/or aggregate
principal amount of Government Obligations, maturing or redeemable at the option of the holder
thereof not later than the date or dates the proceeds of such Government Obligations are required
for the principal, premium, if any, and interest payments hereinafter mentioned in this sentence,
which, together with the income earned on such Government Obligations until the maturity date
or the earliest possible redemption date, as applicable, of such Bond, shall be sufficient to pay,
when and as due, the principal of, and the premium, if any, and interest on, such Bond prior to
and on such maturity date or such earliest possible redemption date, as applicable.

(d) Upon the defeasance of any Outstanding Bond in accordance with this
Section, the City or its designee, as applicable, shall hold in trust, for the benefit of the Owner of
such Bond all such cash or Government Obligations or combination of both cash and
Government Obligations, and except as herein provided shall make no other or different
mvestment of such cash or Government Obligations, or combination of both cash and
Government Obligations, provided, subject to the provisions of this Section, that amount in
excess of those necessary to pay such Outstanding Bonds may be applied at the discretion of the

City.

(e) Anything herein contained to the contrary notwithstanding, no defeasance
of the Bonds, or any thereof, shall be made unless, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, such
defeasance would not cause the Bonds, or any thereof, to be “arbitrage bonds,” or an “arbitrage
bond,” as applicable, within the meaning of applicable provisions of the Code or render the
interest on the Bonds, or any thereof, subject to inclusion in the gross income of the Owners
thereof for federal income tax purposes.

Section 26. Amendments. After the issuance of the Bonds no change, variation, or
alteration of any kind in the provisions of this Resolution which would impair the rights of the
Bondholders shall be made in any manner, until such time as all installments of the principal of
and interest on the Bonds shall have been paid in full unless the consent of all of the Owners of
all then Outstanding Bonds has been obtained; provided, however, that the City is herecby
authorized to make such amendments to this Resolution as will not impair the rights of
Bondholders and the City is authorized to cause the Bonds to be insured with the insurance
company being afforded rights to consent to amendments to this Resolution in lieu of
Bondholders to the extent provided in any insurance policy approved by the City. The laws of
the State of Tennessee shall govern this Resolution.

Section 27.  Failure to Present Bonds. (2) In the event any Bond shall not be presented
for payment when the principal becomes due at maturity and in the event monies sufficient to
pay such Bond shall be held by the Registration Agent for the benefit of the Owner thereof, all

RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 18|34




Hability of the City to such Owner for the payment of such Bond shall forthwith cease, terminate,
and be completely discharged. Thereupon, the Registration Agent shall hold such monies,
without liability for interest thereon, for the benefit of the Owner of such Bond who shall
thereafter be restricted exclusively to such monies for any claim under this Resolution or on, or
with respect to, said Bond.

(b) If any Bond shall not be presented for payment within a period of five
years following the date when such Bond becomes due, whether by maturity or otherwise, the
Registration Agent shall, subject to the provisions of any applicable escheat or other similar law,
pay to the official of the City designated by law as the custodian of such funds, any monies then
held by the Registration Agent for the payment of such Bond and such Bond shall (subject to the
defense of any applicable statute of limitation) thereafter constitute an unsecured obligation of
the City.

Section 28.  Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays, and Holidays. In any case where
the date of maturity or interest on or principal of any Bond shall be a Saturday or Sunday or shall
be, at the place designated for payment, a legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions
similar to the Registration Agent are authorized by law to close, then the payment of the interest
on, or the principal of, such Bond need not be made on such date but must be made on the next
succeeding day not a Saturday, Sunday, or a legal holiday or a day upon which banking
institutions similar to the Registration Agent are authorized by law to close, with the same force
and effect as if made on the date of maturity and no interest shall accrue for the period after such
date.

Section 29. No Action to be Taken Affecting Validity of the Bonds. The Board of
Commissioners hereby covenants and agrees that it will not take any action, that would in any
manner affect the validity of the Bonds or limit the rights and remedies of the Owners from time
to time of such Bonds or affect the exclusion of interest thereon from the gross income of the
owners thereof for purposes of federal income taxation.

~ Section 30,  Miscellaneous Acts. The Mayor, the City Recorder, the Vice Mayor, the
City Attorney, and all other appropriate officials of the City are hereby authorized, empowered,
and directed to do any and all such acts and things, and to execute, acknowledge, and deliver all
such documents, instruments, and certifications, specifically including but not limited to
arbitrage certifications, in addition to those acts, things, documents, instruments, and
certifications hereinbefore authorized and approved, as may in their discretion, be necessary or
desirable to implement or comply with the intent of this Resolution; or any of the documents
herein authorized and approved.

Section 31, No Recourse Under Resolution or on Bonds. All stipulations, promises,
agreements, and obligations of the City contained in this Resolution shall be deemed to be the
stipulations, promises, agreements, and obligations of the City and not of any officer, director, or
employee of the City in his or her individual capacity, and no recourse shall be had for the
payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds or for any claim based thereon or on this
Resolution against any officer, director, or employee of the City or against any official or
individual executing the Bonds.

RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 19|34




Section 32.  Partial [nvalidity. If any one or more of the provisions of this Resolution,
or of any exhibit or attachment thereto, shall be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any
respect, by final decree of any court of lawful jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality, or
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, or of any exhibit or attachment
thereto, but this Resolution, and the exhibits and attachments thereto, shall be construed the same
as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein, or therein,
as the case may be.

Section 33,  Severability. If any section, paragraph, or provision of this Resolution
shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or enforceability of
such section, paragraph, or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions hereof.

Section 34.  Repeal of Conflicting Resolutions and Effective Date. All resolutions and
orders, or parts thereof, in conflict with the provisions of this Resolution, are, to the extent of
such conflict, hereby repealed and this Resolution shall be in immediate effect from and after its
adoption, the welfare of the City requiring it.

[Remainder of the page is intentionally left blank. ]

RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 20|34




Approved and adopted this 21st day of October, 2021,

MAYOR
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:
CITY RECORDER CITY ATTORNEY

RESOLUTION 33-21] CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 21|34



EXHIBIT “A”

(Form of Face of Bond)
REGISTERED REGISTERED
Number $

CITY OF FAIRVIEW, TENNESSEE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2021B

Interest Rate: Maturity Date: Date of Bond: CUSIP No.:

[ , 20]
Registered Owner:  CEDE & CO,

Principal Amount:

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That the City of Fairview, Tennessee, (the
“City™), for value received hereby promises to pay to the registered owner hereof, hereinabove
named, or registered assigns, in the manner hereinafter provided, the principal amount
hereinabove set forth on the maturity date hereinabove set forth [(or upon earlier redemption as
set forth herein)], and to pay interest (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day
months) on said principal amount at the annual rate of interest hereinabove set forth from the
date hereof until said maturity date or redemption date, said interest being payable on June 1,
2022, and semi-annually thereafter on the first day of June and December in each year until this
Bond matures [or is redeemed]. Both principal hereof and interest hereon are payable in lawful
money of the United States of America by check or draft at the designated trust office of
, as registration agent and paying agent (the
“Registration Agent”) The Reglstratmn Agent shall make all interest payments with respect to
this Bond on each interest payment date directly to the registered owner hereof shown on the
Bond registration records maintained by the Registration Agent as of the close of business on the
fifteenth day of the month next preceding the interest payment date (the “Regular Record Date™)
by check or draft mailed to such owner at such owner’s address shown on said bond registration
records, without, except for final payment, the presentation or surrender of this Bond, and all
such payments shall discharge the obligations of the City to the extent of the payments so made.
Any such interest not so punctually paid or duly provided for on any interest payment date shall
forthwith cease to be payable to the registered owner on the relevant Regular Record Date; and,
in lieu thereof, such defaulted interest shall be payable to the person in whose name this Bond is
registered at the close of business on the date (the “Special Record Date™) for payment of such
defaulted interest to be fixed by the Registration Agent, notice of which shall be given to the
owners of the Bonds of the issue of which this Bond is one not less than ten (10) days prior to
such Special Record Date. Payment of principal of [and premium, if any,] on this Bond shall be
made when due upon presentation and surrender of this Bond to the Registration Agent.

4831-8893-9006.3
RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 22 | 34




Except as otherwise provided herein or in the Resolution, as hereinafter defined, this
Bond shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust
Company, New York, New York (“DTC”), which will act as securities depository for the Bonds
of the series of which this Bond is one. One Bond for each maturity of the Bonds shall be issued
to DTC and immobilized in its custody. A book-entry system shall be employed, evidencing
ownership of the Bonds in $5,000 denominations, or multiples thereof, with transfers of
beneficial ownership effected on the records of DTC and the DTC Participants, as defined in the
Resolution, pursuant to rules and procedures established by DTC. So long as Cede & Co., as
nominee for DTC, is the registered owner of the Bonds, the City and the Registration Agent shall
treat Cede & Co., as the only owner of the Bonds for all purposes under the Resolution,
including receipt of all principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, receipt of
notices, voting and requesting or taking or not taking, or consenting to, certain actions hereunder.
Payments of principal, interest, [and redemption premium, if any,] with respect to the Bonds, so
long as DTC is the only owner of the Bonds, shall be paid directly to DTC or its nominee, Cede
& Co. DTC shall remit such payments to DTC Participants, and such payments thereafter shall
be paid by DTC Participants to the Beneficial Owners, as defined in the Resolution. Neither the
City nor the Registration Agent shall be responsible or liable for payment by DTC or DTC
Participants, for sending transaction statements or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing
records maintained by DTC or DTC Participants. In the event that (1) DTC determines not to
continue to act as securities depository for the Bonds or (2) the City determines that the
continuation of the book-entry system of evidence and transfer of ownership of the Bonds would
adversely affect its interests or the interests of the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds, the City may
discontinue the book-entry system with DTC. If the City fails to identify another qualified
securities depository to replace DTC, the City shall cause the Registration Agent to authenticate
and deliver replacement Bonds in the form of fully registered Bonds to each Beneficial Owner.
Neither the City nor the Registration Agent shall have any responsibility or obligations to any
DTC Participant or any Beneficial Owner with respect to (i) the Bonds; (i) the accuracy of any
records maintained by DTC or any DTC Participant; (iii) the payment by DTC or any DTC
Participant of any amount due to any Beneficial Owner in respect of the principal or maturity
amounts of and interest on the Bonds; (iv) the delivery or timeliness of delivery by DTC or any
DTC Participant of any notice due to any Beneficial Owner that is required or permitted under
the terms of the Resolution to be given to Beneficial Owners, (v) the selection of Beneficial
Owners to receive payments in the event of any partial redemption of the Bonds; or (vi) any
consent given or other action taken by DTC, or its nominee, Cede & Co., as owner,

[Bonds of the issue of which this Bond is one maturing June 1, through June 1,

shall mature without option of prior redemption. Bonds maturing June 1, 20 and
thereafter shall be subject to optional redemption on June 1, 20__, at the option of the City, in
whole or in part, or at any time thereafter, at the redemption price of par plus accrued interest to
the redemption date. If less than all the Bonds shall be called for redemption, the maturities to be
redeemed shall be selected by the Board of Commissioners of the City in its discretion. If less
than all the Bonds within a single maturity shall be called for redemption, interests within the
maturity to be redeemed shall be selected as follows:

(i) if the Bonds are being held under a Book-Entry System by DTC, or a

successor Depository, the Bonds to be redeemed shall be determined by DTC, or such
4831-8893-9006.3

RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 23|34



successor Depository, by lot or such other manner as DTC, or such successor Depository,
shall determine, or

(i)  If the Bonds are not being held under a Book-Entry System by DTC, or a
successor Depository, the Bonds within the maturity to be redeemed shall be selected by
the Registration Agent by lot or such other random manner as the Registration Agent in
its discretion shall determine. |

[Subject to the credit hereinafter provided, the City shall redeem Bonds maturing

and on the redemption dates set forth below opposite the

respective maturity dates, in aggregate principal amounts equal to the respective dollar amounts

set forth opposite the respective redemption dates at a price of par plus accrued interest thereon

to the date of redemption. The Bonds to be so redeemed within such maturity shall be selected as

described under (i) and (ii) above. The dates of redemption and principal amount of the Bonds to
be redeemed on said dates are as follows:

Principal Amount of Bonds to
Maturity Date Redemption Date be Redeemed
$

*final maturity

At its option, to be exercised on or before the forty-fifth (45th) day next preceding any
such redemption date, the City may (i) deliver to the Registration Agent for cancellation Bonds
maturing and , in any aggregate principal amount desired, and/or (ii)
receive a credit in respect of its redemption obligation for any Bonds maturing and

, which prior to said date have been purchased or redeemed (otherwise than through
the operation of this mandatory redemption provision) and canceled by the Registration Agent
and not theretofore applied as a credit against any redemption obligation under this mandatory
redemption provision. Each Bond so delivered or previously purchased or redeemed shall be
credited by the Registration Agent at 100% of the principal amount thereof on the obligation of
the City on such payment date and any excess shall be credited on future redemption obligations
in chronological order, and the principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed by operation of this
mandatory redemption shall be accordingly reduced.]

Notice of call for redemption, whether optional or mandatory, shall be given by the
Registration Agent on behalf of the City not less than twenty (20) nor more than sixty (60) days
prior to the date fixed for redemption by sending an appropriate notice to the registered owners
of the Bonds to be redeemed by first-class mail, postage prepaid, at the addresses shown on the
Bond registration records of the Registration Agent as of the date of the notice; but neither

4831-8893-9006.3
RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 24 | 34




failure to mail such notice nor any defect in any such notice so mailed shall affect the sufficiency
of the proceedings for redemption of any of the Bonds for which proper notice was given. The
notice of any optional redemption may state that it is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys in.
an amount equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption with the Registration Agent
no later than the redemption date (“Conditional Redemption™). As long as DTC, or a successor
Depository, is the registered owner of the Bonds, all redemption notices shall be mailed by the
Registration Agent to DTC, or such successor Depository, as the registered owner of the Bonds,
as and when above provided, and neither the City nor the Registration Agent shall be responsible
for mailing notices of redemption to DTC Participants or Beneficial Owners. Failure of DTC, or
any successor Depository, to provide notice to any DTC Participant or Beneficial Owner will not
affect the validity of such redemption. The Registration Agent shall mail said notices as and
when directed by the City pursuant to written instructions from an authorized representative of
the City (other than for a mandatory sinking fund redemption, notices of which shall be given on
the dates provided herein) given at least forty-five (45) days prior to the redemption date (unless
a shorter notice period shall be satisfactory to the Registration Agent). From and afier the
redemption date, all Bonds called for redemption shall cease to bear interest if funds are
available at the office of the Registration Agent for the payment thereof and if notice has been
duly provided as set forth herein. In the case of a Conditional Redemption, the failure of the City
to make funds available in part or in whole on or before the redemption date shall not constitute
an event of default, and the Registration Agent of the particular series in question shall give
immediate notice to the Depository, if applicable, or the affected Bondholders that the
redemption did not occur and that the Bonds called for redemption and not so paid remain
outstanding.

This Bond is transferable by the registered owner hereof in person or by such owner’s
attorney duly authorized in writing at the designated corporate trust office of the Registration
Agent set forth on the front side hereof, but only in the manner, subject to limitations and upon
payment of the charges provided in the Resolution, as hereafter defined, and upon surrender and
cancellation of this Bond. Upon such transfer a new Bond or Bonds of authorized denominations
of the same maturity and interest rate for the same aggregate principal amount will be issued to
the transferee in exchange therefor. The person in whose name this Bond is registered shall be
deemed and regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes and neither the City nor the
Registration Agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary whether or not any payments
due on the Bond shall be overdue. Bonds, upon surrender to the Registration Agent, may, at the
option of the registered owner thereof, be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount of
the Bonds of the same maturity in authorized denomination or denominations, upon the terms set
forth in the Resolution. The Registration Agent shall not be required to transfer or exchange any
Bond during the period commencing on a Regular Record Date or Special Record Date and
ending on the corresponding interest payment date of such Bond, nor to transfer or exchange any
Bond after the notice calling such Bond for redemption has been made.

This Bond is one of a total authorized issue aggregating $ and issued by the
City for the purpose of providing funds to pay the cost of (i) the acquisition of land, site
preparation, the acquisition, construction and equipping of public buildings and facilities,
including facilities for the City’s police firing range and public safety training center and

renovations to City Hall, (ii) the acquisition of land, site preparation and construction,
4831-8893-9006.3
RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 25|34




rehabilitation or maintenance of roads, streets, bridges, sidewalks, greenways, parks, including
improvements to Northwest Highway at or near Highway 96, improvements to Hom Tavern
Road and Chester Road and other miscellaneous road and drainage projects, (iii) construction,
improvements and/or renovations to public buildings and facilities including the City’s parks and
playgrounds, (iv) conversion/payment of the City’s capital outlay note dated April 10, 2020 in
the original principal amount of $375,000 issued for such purpose, (v) the payment of legal,
fiscal, administrative, architectural, design and engineering costs incident to all of the foregoing,
and (vi) reimbursement to the appropriate fund of the City for prior expenditures for the
foregoing cost, if applicable, of which this Bond is one, under and in full compliance with the
constitution and statutes of the State of Tennessee, including Sections 9-21-101, et seq.,
Tennessee Code Annotated, and pursuant to a resolution duly adopted by the Board of
Commissioners of the City on the 21st day of October, 2021 (the “Resolution™).

This Bond is payable from unlimited ad valorem taxes to be levied on all taxable property
within the City. For the prompt payment of principal of, [premium, if any,] and interest on this
Bond, the full faith and credit of the City are irrevocably pledged. For a more complete statement
of the general covenants and provisions pursuant to which this Bond is issued, reference is
hereby made to said Resolution.

This Bond and the income therefrom are exempt from all present state, county and
municipal taxes in Tennessee except (a) Tennessee excise taxes on interest on the Bond during
the period the Bond is held or beneficially owned by any organization or entity, other than a sole
proprictorship or general partnership, doing business in the State of Tennessee, and (b)
Tennessee franchise taxes by reason of the inclusion of the book value of the Bond in the
Tennessee franchise tax base of any organization or entity, other than a sole proprietorship or
general partnership, doing business in the State of Tennessee.

It is hereby certified, recited, and declared that all acts, conditions and things required to
exist, happen and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond exist, have
happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as required by law, and that
the amount of this Bond, together with all other indebtedness of the City, does not exceed any
limitation prescribed by the constitution and statutes of the State of Tennessee.

4831-8893-9006.3
RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 26 | 34




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Bond to be signed by its Mayor with
her manuval [or facsimile] signature and attested by its City Recorder with her manual [or
facsimile] signature under an impression [or facsimile] of the corporate seal of the City, all as of
the date hereinabove set forth.

CITY OF FAIRVIEW, TENNESSEE

By:

Mayor
(SEAL)

ATTESTED:

City Recorder
Transferable and payable at the
Designated trust office of:

Date of Registration:

This Bond is one of the issue of Bonds issued pursuant to the Resolution hereinabove
described.

Registration Agent

By:
Authorized Officer

4831-8893-9006.3
RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 27| 34




(FORM OF ASSIGNMENT)

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns, and transfers unto
, whose address is

(Please ingert Federal Identification or Social Security Number of Assignee ),
the within Bond of The City of Fairview, Tennessee, and does hereby irrevocably constitute and
appoint , attorney, to transfer the said Bond on the records kept for
registration thereof with full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated:

NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must
correspond with the name of the registered owner as
it appears on the face of the within Bond in every
particular, without alteration or enlargement or any
change whatsoever.

Signature guaranteed:

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed
by a member firm of a Medallion Program
acceptable to the Registration Agent.

4831-8893-9006.3
RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 28 | 34




EXHIBIT “B”

Wallar Lansden Dorlch & Davis, LLP

511 Union Streot, Suie 2700 §15244.6280  main
P.O.Box 198764 615244 6800 fax
Nashville, TH 37219-8964 wallerd sw.com

Alexender 8. Buchanan
6158508628 direct
alex.buchanan@wallerdaw.com

October 11, 2021

The.City of Fairview

Attention: Homorable Debby Rainey
7100 City Center Way

Fairview, TN 37062

Re:  Proposed Issuance of up to $9,950,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021B (
the “Bonds”)

Dear Mayor Rainey:

The purpose of this engagement letter is to set forth certain matters concerning the
services we will perform as bond counsel to the City of Fairview (the “City”) in connection with
the issuance of the above-veferenced Bonds. We undersiand that the Bonds are proposed to be
issued as general ohligation bonds for the purpose of financing certain capital improvements
including improvements to the City's parks and playgrounds, acquisition, construction and
equipping of public safety improvements including a police firing range and public safety
training center, conversion/payment of the City’s 2020 capital outlay note in the amount of
$375,000, and other miscellaneous road improvements and payment of other permissible cost,
We further understand that the Bonds are anticipated to be sold in competitive public sale
during the final quarter of 20231, or shortly thereafter.

In this engagement, we expect to perform the following dnties;

&) Subject to the completion of proceedings to our satisfaction, render onr legal
opinion (the “Bond Opinion”) regarding the validity and binding effect of the
Bonds, the source of payment and security for the Bonds, and the exciudability of
intevest on the Bonds from gross income for federal and Tennessee income tax
purposes.

(2}  Prepare and review documents necessary or appropriate to the authorization,
issuance and delivery of the Bonds, coordinate the authorization and execution of
such documents, and review enabling legislation.

(3) Assist the City in seeking from other governmental authorities such approvals,
permissions, and exemptions as we determine are necessary or appropriate in
connection with the authorization, issnance and delivery of the Bonds, except
that we will not be respensible for any required Blue Sky filings.

(4)  Review legal issues relating to the structure of the Bond issues.

4812-1903-0626.2

4831-8893-9006.3
RESOLUTION 33-21

CITY OF FAIRVIEW

PAGE 29 | 34



waller

October 11, 2021
Page 2

(5)  Review those sections of the official statement or other form of offering or
disclosure docnment, if any, to be disseminated in connection with the sale of the
Bonds involving the description of the Bonds. We understand that Cumberland
Securities will act as financial adviser to the City and will be-primarily responsible
for the preparation of any official statement.

{6)  Assist the City in presenting information to bond rating organizations and.
providers of credit enhancement relating to legal issnes affecting the issuance of
the Bonds.

{7} Prepare and review the notice of sale pertaining to the competitive sale of the
Bonds;

(8)  Diaftthe continuing disciosure undertakings with respect to the Bonds.

Our Bond Opinion will be addressed to the City and will be delivered by us on the date
the Bonds are exchanged for their purchase price (the “Closing”).

The Bond Opinion will be based on facts and law existing as of its date. In rendering oar
Bond Opinion, we will rely upon the certified proceedings and other certifications. of public
officials and other persons furnished to ns without undertaking to verily the same by
independent investigation, and we will assume- continuing compliance by the City with
applicable laws relating to the Bonds. During the course of this engagement, we will rely on you
to provide us with complete and timely information on all developments pertaining to any
aspect of the Bonds and their seenrity. We understand that yon will direct members of your staff
and other employees of the City to cooperate with us in this regard.

Our duties in this engagement are hmited to those expressly set forth above. Among
other things, our duties do not include:

(a) Except as provided in paragraph 5 above, assisting in the preparation or review
of an official statement or any other disclosure document with respect to the
Bonds, or performing an independent investigation to determine the accuracy,
completeness or snfficiency of such document, if any or rendering advice that any
official statement or other disclosure dochment does ot contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements contained therein, in light of the circumstances under which they
were made, not misleading or otherwise rendering advice or giving an opinion as
to compliance with any exemption from the registration requirements of the:

| Securities Act of 1933 or applicable blne sky law.

; (b}  Preparing requests for tax rulings from the Internal Revenue Service, of no action
| letters from the Securities and Exchange Commission.

(c) Preparing bhie sky or investment surveys with respect to the Bonds.

(d)  Drafting state constitutional or legislativé amendments.

4812°1503-0526.2
Waller Lansden Dortch & Dawvis, LLP

4831-8893-9006.3
RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 30|34




waller

October 11, 2021
Page 3

(e} Negotiating any new swap or other derivative product to be entered into in
connection with the issuance of the Bonds.

§))] Making an investigation or expressing any view as to the ereditworthiness of the
City or the Bonds.

{g) Except as provided in paragraph & above, preparing or monitoring the
compliance with, or opining on, the continuirig disclosure undertaking pertaining
to the Bonds or; after the Closing, providing advice concerning any actions
necessary to assure compliance with any continuing disclosure undertaking.

(h)  Representing the City in Internal Revenne Service examinations or inquiries, or
Securities and Exchange Commission investigations.

@) After the Closing, providing continuing advice to the City or any other party
concerning any actions necessary to assure that intersst paid on the Bonds will
continue to be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes
(e.g-, our engagement does not include rebate calcufations for the Bonds).

4] Addressing any other matter not specifically set forth above that is not required
to render ourBond Opinion.

As yon dre aware, our firm represents many political subdivisions, companies and
individuals. It is possible that during the time that we are representing the City, one or more of
our present or future clients will have transactions with the City. It is also possible that we may
be asked to represent, in an unrelated matter, one or more of the entities involved in the
issuance of the Bonds. We do not believe such representation, if it occurs, will adversely affect
our ability to represent you as provided in this letter, either because such matters will be
sufficiently different from the issuance of the Bonds so as to make such representations not.
adverse 1o owr representation of you, or because the potential for such adversity is remote or
minor and outweighed by the eonsideration that it is unlikely that advice given to the other
client will be relevant to any aspect of the issuance of the Bonds. Execution of this letter will
signify the City’s consent to our representation of others consistent with the cireumstances
described in this paragraph.

Our engagement is limited to the matters addressed above and will terminate -upon
completion of the issnance of the Bonds and delivery of our opinion refarred to above. For such
services, we would propose being paid $17,000.00 payable upon the elosing of the sale of the
Bonds, If for whatever reason the City does not complete the sale of the Bonds by the end of
calendar year 2022 or does not wish to continue to engage this firm as its Bond Counsel, the City
will not be obligated to pay any amount but we réquest that the City consider the value of the
services rendered. Ifthe terms ofthe engagement are satisfactory to you, we would appreciate

4812-1903-0526.2
Waller Lansden Danich & Davis, LLP

4831-8893-9006.3
RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 3134




waller

October 11, 2021
Page 4

your signing a copy of this letter and returning the same to me. I look forward to working with
you on the proposed transaction. Please let me know if there are any questions.

Very truly yours,
<« &7[ Buchanan
Alexander B. Buchanan

Accepted and agreed to this
day of , 2021,

THE CITY OF FAIRVIEW

By:

4812-1903-0526.2
Waller Lansclen Dartch & Davis, LLP

4831-8893-9006.3
RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 32 | 34




4831-8893-9006.3
RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 33|34




STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON

I, Brandy Johnson, hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting City Recorder of
the City of Fairview, Tennessee (the “City”), and, as such official, I further certify as follows: (1)
that attached hereto is a copy of a resolution excerpted from the minutes of the meeting of the
Board of Commissioners (the “Board of Commissioners™) of said City held on October 21, 2021;
(2) that I have compared said copy with the original minute record of said meeting in my official
custody; (3) that said copy is a true, correct, and complete transcript from said original record
insofar as said original record relates, to, among other matters, the authorization, issuance, and
sale of not to exceed $9,950,000 General Obligation Bond, Series 2021B of said City; (4) that
the actions by said Board of Commissioners, including the aforementioned, at said meeting were
promptly and duly recorded by me in a book kept for such purposes; and, (5) that a quorum of
the members of said Board of Commissioners was present and acting throughout said meeting.

WITNESS my official signature and the seal of said City this _ day of
2021.

CITY RECORDER

4831-8893-9006.3
RESOLUTION 33-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW PAGE 34|34






aforesaid and payment of cost of issuance in connection therewith, the negotiable bond or bonds
of the City of Fairview shall be issued in an aggregate amount not to exceed Nine Million Nine
Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($9,950,000), which shall bear interest at a rate or rates not to
exceed five percent (5.00%) per annum. The bonds shall be general obligation bonds of the City
of Fairview and will be payable from the unlimited ad valorem taxes levied upon all of the
taxable property within the corporate limits of the City of Fairview.,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Recorder is directed to publish this
Resolution in full once in the Main Sireet Fairview, a newspaper of general circulation in the City
of Fairview, together with the following Notice:

NOTICE
The foregoing Resolution has been adopted. Unless within twenty (20) days from the
date of the publication hereof, a petition signed by at least ten percent (10%) of the registered
voters of the City of Fairview shall have been filed with the City Recorder protesting the
issuance of the general obligation bonds, such bonds shall be issued as proposed.

Brandy Johnson, City Recorder

Adopted and approved this 21* day of October, 2021.

Debby Rainey, Mayor

ATTEST:

Brandy Johnson, City Recorder

4848-8219-8270.1
RESOLUTION 34-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW Page 2|2







Page 2 of 3 State Form No. CT-0253
Revised Effective 12/23/2020
REPORT ON DEBT OBLIGATION
{Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated Section 9-21-151)

10. Maturity Dates, Amounts and Intarest Rates®:

Yo [ Ampinl Intee et Rale Amounl l Iiteresy Haty

2022 |$ 211,000.00 1.45%
2023 |3 215,000.00 1.45%
2024 |¢ 219,000.00 1.45%
2025 | 222,000.00 1,45%
2026 |5 225,000.00 1,45%
2027 |5 228,000,00 1.45%
2028 % 230,000.00 1.45%
029 |5 237,000.00 1.45%
2030 |$ 238,000,00 1,45%

if additfonal space Is needed, attach adaitional sheet

H {1} the debt has a final maturity of 35 or more years from the date of issuance, (2) princlpat repayment Is delayed for two of mors years, or {31 If debt service
payments are not level throughout the retirement perlod, then a cumulative repayment schedule {grouped In 5 year Increments out to 30 years) including this and all
other antity debt secured by the same source MUST BE PREPARED AND ATTACHED, For purposes of Ihis form, debt securad by an ad valorem tax pledge and debt
secured by 2 dual ad valorem tax revenue pledge are secured by the same source. Also, debt secuzed by the same revanue stream, ng matter what ten level, is
considerad secured by the same source.

*This sectlen is not applicable to the Inltial Report lor Borrowlng Progeam,

11. Cost of lssuance and Professionals:

O No costs or protessionals

ANMOUMNT FIRR NAMI:

{round to nearest §}

Financial Advisor Fees 5 19,995 Cumberland Securlties Company, nc.
Legal Fees
Bond Counsel 5 9,000 Waller, Lansden, Dortch & Davis

Issuer's Counsel

Trustee's Counsel

Bank Counsel s 1,500 Fifth Third Bank
Disclosure Counse!

Paying Agent Fees

Reglstrar Fees

Trustee Fees

Remarketing Agent Fees

Liquidity Fees

Rating Agency Fees

Credit Enhancement Fees

Bank Closing Costs

Underwrlter's Discount
Take Down
Management Fee

Risk Premium

Underwriter's Counsel

Dther Expenses
Printing & Advertising Fees
Issuer/Administrator Pragram Fees
Reai Estate Fees
Sponsorship/Referral Fee
Other Costs: Misc % 232 structuring, postaage, doc product, travel, etc.

TOTAL COSTS s 30,727
L




Page 3 of 3 State Form No, CT-0253

Revised Effective 12/23/2020
REPORT ON DEBT OBLIGATION
{Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated Section 9-21-151)

12

Recurring Costs:
ENO Recurring Costs
AMDUMT
{Basin pointn/s)

FIii WARL (f diffesent from i1 1)

Remarketing Agent

Paying Agent/Registrar
Trustee

Liquidity/Credit Enhancement
Escrow Agent
Sponsorship/Program/Admin
Other

13.

Disctasure Document/Official Statement:
None Prepared
EMMA Link
Copy Attached

14

H

Continuing Disclosure Obligations:

ts there an ex|sting continuing disclosure obllgation related to the security for this debt? Yes DNO
Is there a continuing disclosure obligation agreement related to this debt? Yas No

If ves to either question, date that disclosure Is due 6/30/2022

Name and title of person responsible for compliance Scott Collins, City Manager

15

Written Debt Management Policy:
Governing Body's approval date of the current version of the written debt management poilcy 7/19/2012

Is the Debt obligation in compliance with and clearly authorized under the pelicy? E'Ves DNo

16.

Written Derivative Management Policy:
ENO Derivative
Governing Body's approval date of the current version of the written derlvative management pollcy
Date of Letter of Compliance for derivative
Is the derivative in compliance with and clearly authorized under the policy? DVES DNO

17

Submission of Report:
To the Governing Body: on 10/1/2021 and presented at the public meeting held on 10/21/2021
Copy to Director of OSLF: on 10/1/2021 either hy:
I:IMaii to: Emai! to:
425 Hep John Lewls Parkway M, ath Floor LGFE@cot.tn.gov

Cordel Hull Bullding
Nashville, TN 37243-3400

18.

signatures: e S S, > Toarr— . 6 |

AUTHORIZED BEPRESTNTATIVE
Name Scott Collins Scott P, Gibsan
Title City Manager Senior Vice President
Firm Falrview, Tennessee Cumberland Securitles Company, inc,
Email scollins@falrview-tn.org scott.gibson@cumber|andsecyrities.com

Date 10/1/2021 10/1/2021










Attest:

City Recorder

Approved As To Form:

City Attorney

RESOLUTION 36-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW Page 2 | 2



1-800-390-8438

www,GreatSouthernRec.com

* ¥
g}'eaé Svuthienn

WA EREAT g, Beautiful Outdoor Spaces, we can ALL be proud of.

ORGANIZATION: City of Falrview PROJECT TITLE: Bewie Park Replacement
CONTACT: Scott Collins REVISION: 2
ADDRESS: 2100 City Center Circle, Falrview, TH 37062 OPTION: 1-Turn-Key

PHONE: 615-799-2002

Official Quote from Great Southern Recreation

OMNIA CERTIFIED PROPOSAL NUMBER: TN-R170304-312639

HITON
Nathan
IMBER S i PRICE .

AS0681788 Custom Playcraft 5-12YR Ramped Treehouse Structure 5 207,698.00 | & 207,698.00
NEPTUN.2D Custom Berliner Neptun.20 [ 85,106.00 | & 86,106.00
R507089DA Custom Playcraft 2-5YR Treehouse Structure ] 66,098.00 | § 66,098.00
PC 2445 Double UltraZip w/ (1) inclusive Seat and (1} Zip Line Seat 1 28,24300 | % 28,243.00
FNHP Freenotes Instruments - Drums, Imbarimba, Swirl and Griffin s 21,669.00 | $ 21,669.00
PC 6263 Friendship Spinner inclusive Ground Level Merry Go Round s 17,5000 | § 17,150.00
PC 1375 1 Multi-Spring Forest Service Truck s 8,875,600 | $§ 8,875.00
TCoo1 1 1D Sculptures GFRC 8ear Cub $ 9,875.00 F 5 9,875.00
AP0O09% 1 1D Sculptures GFRC Batance Log S 6,163,00 ; $ 6,163.00
PC 2015 1 Steel 3-Bay Arch Swing w/ Tire Swing and {2) Belts 4 7,577.00 | 5 7,577.00
PC212D 1 Steel 2-Bay Arch Swing - (1) Full Bucket, {1} Playshare, (2) ADA s 7,296,00 | 5 7,296.00
MISCELLANEQUS 3 & Long Park Bench w/ Backrest [ 650,00 | 5 3,900.00

g .
SUBTOTAL FOR EQUIPMENT | & 470,650.00
Certified Southern-built ™ installation] $ 143,950
SAFETY SURFACE 12053[ Engineered Wood Fiber Safety Surface | $ 155|% 18,682.15

Average Depth: _9" Compacted , Color _N/A
SAFETY SURFACE 3325' Unitary Bonded Rubber Safety Surface | s 12.50{ % 42,852,50
Average Depth: _3.5" , Color _ T80

SURFACE SUBSTRATE 3094 3" Compacted Crushed Stone Substrate S 215§ B,508.50
BORDER 610 Concrete Curb Containment Border s 23¢e0 |8 14,030.00
CONCRETE 300 Concrete Pad fer Music Equipment 5 8BS0 | § 2,550.00
MAINTENANCE 19 Swing/Slide Mats - 3'%x5'%2' 135!bs 3 24500 ] % 4,655.00
DISCOUNT 0% OMHNIA PURCHASING CONTRACT DISCOUNT] § (47,085.00)
SUBTOTAL |5 656,098.15
TAX RATE 7.00%

SALES TAX -
MANUFACTURER STEEL SURCHARGE 44,816.58
EQUIPMENT FREIGHT 32,552.00
SURFACE FREIGHT 5,163.00

Please Note Exclusions and Expectations on Attached Contract Form

Great Southesn Recreation: 2441-Q Qld Fort Parkway, Murfreesboro, TN 37128

TOTAL | & 738,629.73







NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
THE CITY OF FAIRVIEW, TENNESSEE, AS FOLLOWS:

The City of Fairview board of commissicners hereby resclves that in any event any invoice
or invoices are remitted to the city by Great Southern Recreation, either all or in part, for
The Treehouse Playground at Bowie Nature Park the city manager is authorized to
transfer funds not to exceed $738,629.73, from the reserve account to pay said invoices,
and

‘BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any funds transferred from the reserve fund to pay
these invoices must be returned to the reserve fund with ten (10) days of the receipt or
availability of the Series 2021B bond funds and within ten (10) days of the receipt of the
approximately $150,000 in privately held donated funds that are to be remitted to the city
on or before December 29, 2021.

Adopted this day of , 2021.

Mayor

Attest:

City Recorder

Approved As To Form:

City Attorney

RESOLUTION 37-21 CITY OF FAIRVIEW Page 2| 2




